HICKAM AFB, HAWAII

SP0600-03-R-0159

PREPROPOSAL CONFERENCE AND SITE VISIT

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS

DECEMBER 2003

Question 1:  Would it be possible to submit the proposals to Hickam AFB (or someplace on Oahu) instead of Virginia?

Answer:  The Contracting Officer is located at Defense Energy Support Center, Ft. Belvoir, Virginia.  As stated in the Solicitation on DD 1707, page 2, all proposals must be submitted by January 21, 2004 by 3:00 p.m. EST to Defense Energy Support Center, ATTN:  Anwar Ali, Room 3830, 8725 John J. Kingman Road, Ft. Belvoir, VA  22060-6222

 

Question 2:  What is the anticipated contract award date?

Answer:  The Government reserves the right to award or not award a contract for any of the systems offered in Solicitation SP0600-03-R-0159.  If the Government awards any contract, the timeframe is approximately scheduled for November 2004. 
 

Question 3:  Is the cutoff date for questions on December 5th (45 days prior to the closing date of the proposal)?
 

Answer:  No.  December 8, 2003 will be the cutoff date for questions on this solicitation.

Question 4:  Under the subject solicitation, what is considered to be an entity that is subject to rate regulation per Sections I.5 - Non Regulated Utility Clauses Incorporated by Reference, I.6 – Regulated Utility Clauses Incorporated by Reference and Section B.6 Alternate Price Proposal?

Answer:  In accordance with B.3., CLIN AB a regulated utility system is defined as a utility system that is governed by the state.  If the state controls a company’s tariff rate, the company is considered to be a regulated company. If a company is a regulated entity, Sections B.6. and I.6. apply.  If a company is a nonregulated entity, Sections B.5. and I.5. apply. 

Question 5:  For other than the name of the systems to be privatized and similar site-specific information, are there any substantive changes to either the Solicitation Document or the Right of Way as compared to the generic Air Force RFP template?  If so, please identify the clauses and/or terms that are different.  Because the RFP documents are provided as PDF rather than Work files, we are not able to readily identify changes using the document compare features in Word.

Answer:  The solicitation does not have any substantive changes from the Air Force RFP template.  The utility specific Section J’s address site-specific information.  

Question 6:  Referencing Clause L.2.1.4 of the Solicitation (Non-Government Advisors), offerors must state if they have any objections to non-government advisor access to proposal information.  However, the Solicitation merely states that Air Force contractors may not assist or participate in the preparation of any proposal.  There thus is insufficient information for which an offeror may consider objections.  Please provide a list of non-government advisors.  If the Government is not sure which if any advisors will be used, please provide a list of contractors that may be used.

Answer:  The following non-government advisors are involved in the Hickam AFB and Bellows AFS, HI solicitation as advisors:


Northrop Grumman


CH2MHill

Question 7:  Referencing Clause L.9.6.1 of the Solicitation (Schedule for B-2 and B-3 Instructions), the title of the clause refers to Schedule B-3, which is the alternative price proposal applicable to regulated public utilities.  However, the substance of the clause refers to Schedule B-2.  May we assume that a regulated utility should provide a price proposal that endeavors to describe a tariff rate in a manner that is consistent to the intent, if not the letter, of the B-2 related instructions? 
Answer:  Yes, a regulated utility should provide a price proposal that endeavors to describe a tariff rate in a manner that is consistent to the intent.  As stated in Section B.6., Alternate Price Proposal, “The Offeror shall complete a schedule B-3 for each utility system included in the proposal if proposing established or special tariff(s), schedule(s) and rate(s).”  Section L.9.6.1 covers both B-2 and B-3 although the solicitation only refers to B-2.  

Question 8:  There is a similar concern (as in Question 7) with respect to Clause M.4.6.3 (Comparison of Offered Prices with the Government Estimate).  For example, the clause states that the sub-CLIN AA monthly credit under Schedule B-3 will be applied to the Fixed Monthly Charge, yet there is no such charge for tariff service.

Answer:  The monthly credit of CLIN AA is the monthly portion of the purchase price that will be credited to the Government over the number of months as proposed by the offeror.  As it is not a part of the regulated company’s tariff rate, a separate line was inserted in sub-CLIN AA to address the purchase price credit to the Government.

Question 9:  Referencing Clause M.6 of the Solicitation (Cascading Preference Set-Aside), a literal reading of the clause is that if two responsive offers are received from small businesses, then the government will not even consider for award an offer from a large business.  Is this interpretation correct? 

Answer:  Amendment 0001 deleted Section M.6., Cascading Preference Set-Aside.
Question 10:  This clause (Section M.6) on its face would seem to violate the provisions of 10 U.S.C. 2688, as amended, which provide that the privatization process shall be conducted in a manner that allows the participation of regulated utilities.  Per the noted clause, a large regulated utility would be precluded from consideration if two qualifying small business bids are submitted.  Please provide a rationale for how the clause is consistent with 10 U.S.C. 2688.

Answer:  Amendment 0001 deleted Section M.6., Cascading Preference Set-Aside.

Question 11:  Clause M.6 appears incompatible with the DD Form 1707, which states that this procurement is unrestricted.  Please clarify.

Answer:  Amendment 0001 deleted Section M.6., Cascading Preference Set-Aside.
Question 12:  Referencing Section J1.2 of Attachment J1 (System Description), please provide information on the status of the housing privatization at Hickam AFB and how that might affect the nature of and requirements for a privatized electric utility service.

Answer:  Housing privatization at Hickam AFB is proceeding with possible award in Jan 04.  There should be no affect for a privatized electric utility service.

Question 13:  Referencing Section J2.1 of Attachment J1 (System Description), please indicate whether the Table 1 inventory data for overhead and underground circuits refers to “conductor feet“ or “circuit feet.”  Given the amount of ductbank and calculated average spacing between power poles, it appears that the numbers refer to conductor feet.

Answer:  The inventory data for overhead and underground circuits refers to conductor feet.  

Question 14:  Referencing Section J1.3 of Attachment J1 (Specific Service Requirements) and Section J4.3 of Attachment J4 (Specific Service Requirements), the fourth requirement refers to exercises within the Bases.  Please describe the annualized number and scope of such exercises and the level of participation expected from the privatized service contractor.  

Answer:  There are approximately 4-6 exercises within the Base per year lasting up to a week.  Depending on the scenario of the disrupted utility, the privatized service contractor will assist in determining what facilities are affected, how service can be restored and estimated time to restore service.
Question 15:  Referencing Section J1.3 of Attachment J1 (Specific Service Requirements), the eighth requirement refers to excavation notice.  Does AF Form 103 provide for the issuance of a blanket excavation permit as envisioned in Attachment 1 of the Right of Way?

Answer:  No, AF Form 103 needs to be processed and approved before any excavation starts to ensure other utilities are identified to prevent disruption of any utilities.  In the event of emergency work (water and sewer breaks, or secondary electrical outages), sections identified in the AF Form 103 will be contacted via phones to accelerate the process.

Question 16:  Referencing Section J1.3 of Attachment J1 (Specific Service Requirements), the 15th requirement refers to need to secure an easement for parts of the distribution system that are on non-Air Force land.  Section J1.1 states that Hickam AFB is owned and operated by the 15th Air Wing.  Is there non-AF land within the Base?  If so, please identify and indicate which electric distribution facilities are located on such land.  See also Section J1.8 (Service Area).  

Referencing Section J4.8 of Attachment J4 (Service Area), there is land within the Base that is owned by others (i.e., Navy, GSA, and the State of Hawaii).

a. Does the Base have valid and current easements for all electric distribution facilities located within land owned by others?  If so, please provide copies.  If not, please clarify.

b. Please identify and indicate which electric distribution facilities are located on such land.  

Answer:  There are no non-AF land within the Base, however base utilities do cross over into adjacent properties (i.e. Honolulu International Airport, Navy, and FAA).  The  utility privatization contractor is responsible to secure it’s own right of way or easements.  The utility privatization contractor is responsible to secure it’s own utility right of way or easements with land owned by others.  See attachments for map of land owned by others.

Question 17:  Referencing Section J1.3 of Attachment J1 (Specific Service Requirements), the 16th requirement refers to historic and archaeological resources.  A literal reading of the text seems to imply that a Section 106 report must be prepared for any activity that involves any ground disturbance.  It would seem more appropriate that the objectives for this requirement could best be met in conjunction with the excavation permit process under the Right of Way.

Answer:  Section 106 report must be process separately from the AF Form 103 for any activity that involves any ground disturbance.  Section 106 process goes through different agencies.

Question 18:  Referencing Section J1.11 of Attachment J1 (System Deficiencies), capital upgrade project costs are to be recovered through Schedule L-3, which envisions a separate amortized payment for each project.  This cost recovery mechanism is not compatible with Schedule B-3 regulated utility service using a tariff service rate.  Capital costs for regulated utilities are generally ratebased and recovered as part of a bundled tariff rate.  Note also that Schedule B-2 includes CLIN AC, Initial Capital Upgrades, whereas Schedule B-3 does not.  Please clarify that regulated utilities may recover initial upgrade costs as part of tariff rates.

Answer:  Yes, regulated utilities can recover initial upgrade costs as part of their tariff rates.
Question 19: Referencing Section J4.2 of Attachment J4 (System Description), what was the installation date for the 1,700 feet of underground ductbank at Bellows AFS.  Was it 1976? 

Answer:  The original line was installed in 1957 with some lines replaced in 2001.  The 1976 date is the overall average date.

Question 20:  Referencing Section J4.2 of Attachment J4 (System Description), please indicate whether the Table 7 (Should be Table 1?) inventory data for overhead and underground circuits refers to “conductor feet“ or “circuit feet.”  Given the amount of ductbank and calculated average spacing between power poles, it appears that the numbers refer to circuit feet.  Please note that the opposite appears to be the case for Hickam AFB inventory data.

Answer:  The inventory data for overhead and underground circuits refers to circuit feet.  

Question 21:  Referencing Section J4.3 of Attachment J4 (Specific Service Requirements), the eighth requirement refers to excavation notice.  Does AF Form 103 provide for the issuance of a blanket excavation permit as envisioned in Attachment 1 of the Right of Way?

Answer:  There are approximately 4-6 exercises within the Base per year lasting up to a week.  Depending on the scenario of the disrupted utility, the privatized service contractor will assist in determining what facilities are affected, how service can be restored and estimated time to restore service.
Question 22:  Section L.4.1 of the Request for Proposals limited the Technical Volume to 200 pages per system.  Are one-sided or two-sided pages considered 200 pages and are appendices included in this 200-page limit?

Answer:  The 200-page limit refers to one-sided pages.  Appendices are not included in this 200-page limit.

Question 23:  What provisions are in place for an offeror to get copies of the technical library?

Answer:  Offeror are to forward an email requesting what copies they would like to the Contracting Office at DESC (laurie.carlson@dla.mil) with a carbon copy to Mr. Camara (john.camara@hickam.af.mil).  The base CE will provide those copies within one day.

Question 24:  What are the technical library hours?

Answer:  The technical library is available from 7:15 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. PST.  Due to the technical library physically being in a small room, a request must be forwarded to John Camara at john.camara@hickam.af.mil or by phone (808)449-1764 to schedule a visit to the technical library.

Question 25:  Will the technical library be available on CD ROM?

Answer:  No the technical library will not be available on CD ROM.  Also CADD drawings are not available.  See Questions 23 and 24 above for further information on the technical library.

Question 26:  In the Preproposal Conference briefing it refers to Recoverable Portion of the Purchase Price will be amortized over the first ____ months of service at an interest rate that is ____ percentage below the annual interest rate on U.S. Treasury Bonds in effect at the time of award.  What is the U.S. Treasury Bond Rate that the government is referring to?

Answer:  As stated on the B-2, the interest rate on U.S. Treasury Bonds (30-years) is as established in the most recent 30-year bond issue prior to the time of the award, and published in the Federal Register (http://www.federalreserve.gov/releases/H15/update/).

Question 27:  What is meant by the offeror certifying that CD ROMs are virus free in Section L.4.4., Electronic Media, of the Request for Proposals?

Answer:  Virus scan software provides a page that states the CD ROM is virus free.  The government will accept a printout of this page from the virus scan software that the offeror is certifying the CD ROM is virus free.

Question 28:  What is the intention of the housing privatization in Phase I now as it relates to the Utility Privatization Request for Proposals?

Answer:  MFH privatization utilities delineations are as identified in the RFP. 

Question 29:  Are there any areas not covered by the Right of Ways(ROWs)? 

Answer:  Yes, these are addressed in the Section J’s of the Request for Proposals

 Question 30:  Can pictures be taken during site visits?

Answer:  Yes, pictures are allowed except for the flightline area on Hickam AFB.

Question 31:  What effect will there be on a privatized utility system if the installation gets selected for closure under the Base Realignment and Closure (BRAC) process?  If the utilities privatization contract is terminated due to BRAC, does ownership of the system revert back to the Government?

Answer:  In accordance with Section F.1. of the Request for Proposals, the appropriate Federal Acquisition Regulation (FAR) clause will apply for termination of the Service Contract.  Through negotiations, the Government will reimburse the contractor for all reasonable and allowable costs.  The Government does not take back the utility system if the contract is terminated due to BRAC.  It remains the property of the Contractor.  Continued access to the utility system will be governed by the existing Right of Way until the installation property is sold/transferred to a new owner.

Question 32:  What building is Meter House #2 on Hickam AFB (Fox between 18th and 19th streets)?

Answer:  Building 210

Question 33:  For the Lift Station 9 (MFH at 6th Street) on Hickam AFB:  (1) Does grease build up? (2) How do the pumps hold up?  (3) Does Hickam have spare pumps? (4) Does it have regular steel guide rails?  (4)  Who is the alarm set to go to as the sign states to contact the engineer immediately if alarm sounds?  

Answer:  (1) Yes .  (2) Yes.  (3) Yes.  (4) Yes.  (5) The Fire Dept

Question 34:  What is the address of Lift Station 3 on Hickam AFB?  Is it considered a historical building?

Answer:  Lift Stations 1 through 4 are considered historical buildings.

Question 35:  What year was the electrical back station constructed at Hickam AFB?

Answer:  1956.

Question 36:  When was the CROSS installed near the flightline at Hickam AFB?

Answer:  It was installed about two and one-half years ago in 2001.

Question 37:  For the electric sewage treatment plant feeder at Hickam AFB, who owns the overhead and switchgear?

Answer:  The Air Force owns the overhead and the Navy owns the switchgear.

Question 38:  How often does the base check the large and small lift stations?

Answer:  The base checks the large lift stations every day and the small lift stations every other day.

Question 39:  What is the size of the vault for Building 1055 on the electric system at Hickam AFB and where does it feed into?  Is it the same layout as the other vaults?

Answer:  Approximately 20 ft by 25 ft

Question 40:  Who owns the back station (Fort Kam) and the Bishop Point Feeder on the electric system at Hickam AFB?  Where does Hickam plan to build the new backup station?

Answer:  AF owns the back station.  The Fort Kam and Bishop Point Feeder is owned by the Navy.

Question 41:  Is the DOT Meter at the FAA Tower used?

Answer:  The DOT Meter is hooked up but it is shutoff since water comes from the Navy and is looped in from the flightline.

Question 42:  Bellows AFS plans to put the electrical system underground.  As this is not stated in the Request for Proposals, how do we address?

Answer:  As this project is not part of the Request for Proposals, offerors need not address it at this time.  If the requirement is made known during the contract period, a modification to the contract will be negotiated with the incumbent contractor.

Question 43:  The local news stated that Hickam AFB was funded $72 million.  What are these funds for and will it affect the utility privatization effort?

Answer:  The funds were for the C-17 projects.  It will affect the utility privatization as increased assets and will be added in the future as it comes on line.

Question 44:  What is the hardware on the angle/corner pole for the switches at the CE compound at Bellows AFS?

Answer:  The hardware on the corner pole is for communication; antennas.

Question 45:  Has the State of Hawaii ordered replacement of injection wells into the leaching fields at Bellows AFS?

Answer:  The injections wells are being converted to leaching fields.

Question 46:  Are the switches at Building 700 on Bellows AFS used?  What is the use of the Building?

Answer: There are no switches at Bldg 700.  It’s fused cutouts and is used as transitions from overhead to underground.

Question 47:  Do the underground electrical lines run under the old runway?

Answer:  No.

Question 48:  Why was the 12-inch pressure reducing valve installed?  What are the low and high sides of pressure?  How old is the original piping and what is the age of the new PVC piping?  Can you take the pressure higher than what the base kept is at now?

Answer:  To reduce the pressure in the lines.  The pressures are approximately 95 psi on the high side and 65 psi on the low side.  The original piping was pre World War II and the new 12 inch PVC was installed  in 2000 and the 8 inch HDPE was installed in 2000.  To increase the pressure would increase the possibility of water breaks.

Question 49:  How do the lines from the Board of Water Supply connection outside of the base feed to Bellows AFS?  

Answer:  The connection was at Kalaniana’ole Hwy and the section of the government property meeting the highway by Jack in the Box.  There is no connecting street.

Question 50:  The projects identified in Table 8 of the Attachments do not match the list of projects in the Future Upgrades binder in the Technical Library.  Please reconcile the list of Electrical Distribution System (EDS) improvement projects that the Government has planned.

· Please provide a summary of the purpose, objective, and general scope of each of these projects, to include descriptions and maps showing the proposed work for each project.

· Please provide reference material which contains project details (e.g., specifications and map references) for each project.

Answer:  The General plan is constantly being updated.  The future upgrades binder listed the latest projects with general descriptions of the work. 

Question 51:  The following projects were listed in the Future Upgrades binder in the Technical Library for Bellows ARS:

· BFMV 021135-1 O&M #38  Replace Electrical/Communication System Phase 1;

· BFMV 021135-2 O&M #56  Replace Electrical/Communication System Phase 2;

· BFMV 021135-3 O&M #57  Replace Electrical/Communication System Phase 3.

We understand that the scope of these projects is to convert the entire existing overhead system to underground.  Please provide the rationale for the general requirement to underground the system.  That is, is the requirement based solely on aesthetic reasons or are there service reliability or other reasons for the projects? Are the projects funded?  If so, please provide details.

Answer:  The projects were to insure reliability in adverse weather.  Only Phase I has been funded.  The project is design build with no details.  Hickam’s policy is to put all utilities underground.  

Question 52:  The EDS includes some transformers and switches that are enclosed within buildings.  Are such buildings included in the EDS inventory being transferred to the UP contractor?  If so, please identify the buildings on a map and provide the building number and street location, and map coordinates.  

Answer:  The facilities that house only the Transformer Vaults (TV) and/or the Switch Vaults (SV) identified on the electrical distribution map will be conveyed.  Facilities housing not exclusively TVs and SVs are not to be conveyed but the privatized service contractor will be responsible for the vaults. 

Question 53:  Please clarify what types of lighting are included in the EDS inventory.  It appears that lights on ball fields and parking lots and those area lights served directly from the building distribution panel are excluded from the EDS inventory.

·  Do the Attachment J1 and J4 inventories only include lighting (fixtures, poles, and circuits) that is powered from the exterior EDS?

· If not, please revise the inventories to exclude lighting that is powered from building (interior) systems, and describe the location of such lighting facilities. 

Answer:  The ball fields, parking lots and those area lights served directly from the building distribution panel are excluded from the EDS inventory.  Attachment J1 and J4 inventories only include lighting (fixtures, poles, and circuits) that is powered from the exterior EDS.  

Question 54:  Attachment J1 states that secondaries for the Capehart and Earhart housing areas are not within the scope of the privatized system.  Unfortunately, Base personnel were not able to distinguish, in other than general terms, the boundaries of these housing areas from other housing within Hickam AFB.

· Please describe the location and boundaries of these areas.  Map references would be appreciated.

· Please confirm that the UP contractor’s responsibilities for the EDS within other housing areas will be in accordance with the points of demarcation identified in the Right of Way.  The ROW indicates that the contractor would own the secondary service drops.  However, secondary lines are not listed in the either of the EDS inventories.

Answer:  The secondary lines in the non privatized housing and industrial areas need to be listed in the EDS inventory.  

Question 55:  It is understood that the there are plans to have the Housing Privatization (HP) contractor underground the existing overhead EDS in the HP areas.  Please clarify the existing and future responsibilities between the UP and HP contractors and the responsibilities (including costs) for the undergrounding upgrades.

· For example, may we assume that the UP contractor will be responsible for the primary voltage facilities (upstream from the transformer secondary connections) and that the HP contractor will then be responsible for downstream facilities?

· In a related matter, may we assume that the HP contractor will be required to underground the secondary facilities but that there is no related requirement for the contractor to underground the primary facilities?

· Please clarify the responsibilities of the UP contractor in the non-privatized housing areas.     

Answer:  The HP will install the existing system underground at HP contractors cost and turn over the underground system to the Air Force.  The UP contractor will be responsible for the primary voltage facilities and the HP contractor responsible for the downstream facilities.  The UP contractor will be responsible to install the underground system in the remaining areas.

Question 56:  Please confirm that there are no other joint occupants within ducts and manholes/handholes included in the EDS inventory to be transferred. 

Answer:  :  There are no joint occupants within ducts and manholes/handholes in the EDS inventory to be transferred.

Question 57:  Although mentioned in the Pre-proposal Conference presentation as contents of the Technical Library, there were no Environmental Baseline Surveys, Environmental Assessments, or Environmental Impact Statements in the Technical Library.  

· Please reconcile the pre-proposal statements with the statement in Exhibit C of the Attachment J46 right-of-way that “the Air Force has determined that it is not required to conduct an EBS in regard to the sale of this utility system.”

· Was an EBS or other environmental studies prepared?  If so, please provide the documents.

Answer:  Regarding the first bullet, the latest Air Force policy on this issue is shown below.
"Environmental Baseline Survey 
An EBS may be necessary in the case of some utility system sales.  The level of analysis will be determined on a case-by-case basis depending on the specific circumstances of the privatization action. Generally, a privatization action that only results in the sale of the system with a right-of-way (i.e., no land is sold) will not require an EBS.  Nevertheless, in some circumstances it may still be desirable to conduct an EBS to establish the condition of the land surrounding the utility system.  This is most likely to occur in the case of the sale of a wastewater system that includes a treatment plant.  If the Grantor (AF) determines that an EBS is required, the Grantor (owner) will prepare the EBS in accordance with the Grantor's standards and requirements.  Costs for this EBS will be born by the Grantor.  The EBS will be performed with the successful offeror after the award.  If such an EBS is required and prepared, upon expiration, termination, or abandonment of the Right-of-Way, Grantor will prepare another EBS, in accordance with Grantor's standards and requirements, which will document the environmental condition of the property at the end of Grantee's use of the premises.  Costs for this EBS will be born by the Grantor.  The findings of the two EBSs will be used to settle factual aspects of claims for restoration of the Premises.  Grantee is responsible for the costs of any environmental restoration necessitated as a result of its use of the premises." 

 

Regarding the second bullet, no other environmental studies were prepared.
Question 58:  Information on the presence of polychlorinated biphenyls (PCB) is not contained in the Technical Library, but is needed to assess properly environmental costs and risks.

· Does the EDS currently contain PCB equipment, such as transformers or cabling?  Does it contain PCB contaminated equipment?  If so, please identify and discuss.

· Was any PCB sampling done on the electrical equipment to confirm the presence or absence of PCBs?  If so, please provide the PCB sampling results and confirmation on the level of PCB contamination of the electrical equipment at the Bases.

· Did the EDS previously contain PCB equipment?  If so, was the disposition of this equipment properly documented.  If so, please provide the documentation.

Answer:  EDS currently contain no PCB equipment per EPA guidelines.  Sampling was done and any PCB equipment was identified and removed out of the system.  
Question 59:  Information on the presence asbestos or lead paint similarly is not contained in the Technical Library, but is needed to assess properly environmental costs and risks.

· Does the EDS include facilities containing asbestos or lead paint?

· If so, was a survey performed on the affected facilities?  If so, please provide same.    

Answer:  The facilities have not been tested for asbestos or lead paint.  

Question 60:  Are there existing or historical documents related to the release of transformer oil or other chemicals (e.g., mercury, asbestos, battery fluids) within the rights of way designated for the EDS (i.e., 13 feet on either side of the privatized facilities)?  If so, please provide the same.

Answer:  No.

Question 61:  Although mentioned in the Pre-proposal Conference presentation as contents of the Technical Library, there were no Utility Outage reports for Past 2 years.  Please provide historical outage reports for the Hickam and Bellows EDS.  

Answer:  See attachments for outage report for the past 2 years.
Question 62:  Referencing Clause M.6 of the Solicitation (Cascading Preference Set-Aside), please clarify the meaning of “competitive offers.”  For example, Clause B.2.4.1 of the Solicitation provides that the Government can only sell the utility systems if “the long term economic benefit of the conveyance to the United States exceeds the long-term costs.”
· Consistent with this requirement, the competitive criteria in Clause M.6 would seem to refer to a comparison with the Government’s status quo costs and that award must be made to one of at least two small business offerors.  Is this a correct interpretation?

Answer:  Amendment 0001 deleted Section M.6., Cascading Preference Set-Aside.
· If so, it is understood that the Government generally envisions taking four months to evaluate initial proposals and to receive final proposals, and that the source selection process would generally take an additional 3 to 4 months.  Please reconcile this approximate timeline with the Standard Form 33 requirement for a 300-day offer acceptance period.  This would not seem to afford sufficient time to completely evaluate small and large business proposal on a cascading (serial) basis.
Answer:  Amendment 0001 deleted Section M.6., Cascading Preference Set-Aside.

Question 63:  Referencing Attachment J1 for Hickam AFB, Section J1.2.1 states that the distribution system to be privatized excludes the privatized Capehart and Earhart Housing secondaries (emphasis added). This statement implies that the primary voltage distribution facilities upstream of the secondaries are not excluded, to include transformers and primary voltage conductor poles, switches, etc. Section J1.2.1.1 system description, however, states that the "electric distribution inventory does not include the inventory for the privatized housing areas: Capehart Housing and Earhart Housing." Please clarify the two statements. Specifically, what if any of the Capehart Housing and Earhart Housing electric distribution facilities are:

a. Included in the Table 1 system inventory.

b. Included in the scope of the privatized system.

c.  Assuming that the scope of the privatized system is less than as stated in Section J1.2.1, please provide a specific description of the points of demarcation between the distribution facilities that will be covered under the utilities versus the housing privatization initiative. 

Answer:  The primary voltage distribution facilities upstream of the secondaries are part of the Utilities Privatization.
Question 64:  (RFP Paragraph C.3.1 [Utility Service Requirement]) - Paragraph J2.2.1.1 and J5.2.1.1 state that the HAFB BioEnvironmental Engineering staff currently monitors water quality at HAFB and BAFS for compliance with HDOH regulations.

a. Will sampling and analyses (monitoring) of drinking water quality be a contractor responsibility?

b. Will BioEnvironmental Engineering continue to be responsible for compliance monitoring subsequent to water system privatization?

(1) If so, will the contractor be assessed a charge for these services?

(2) Is so, do you have an estimate of these charges?

c. If BioEnvironmental Engineering will retain some, but not all of monitoring responsibility, please advise which water quality monitoring responsibilities will be required of the contractor.  Will BioEnvironmental Engineering continue to take water quality readings or will the winning contractor assume responsibility?      

Answer:    a.  No.

b.  Yes.  The contractor will not be assessed a charge for these services.

c.  See b. above

Question 65: (RFP Paragraph C.10.3 [Hazardous Material] and C.11.2.1 [Renewal and Replacements]) - Section 10.0 of the proposed attachment J47 and J50 Right of Ways gives the Grantor the sole discretion to decide on utility system abandonment.  We note that there are several abandoned water mains already at the installations.  

a. Will the Air Force allow the contractor to abandon in place asbestos-cement water mains that are superseded by renewal/replacement projects?

b. Will all asbestos-cement pipelines superseded by renewal/replacement projects be required to be removed from the premises?

c. Will the abandonment decisions be done on a case-by-case basis as they occur?

Answer:    a.  Yes.

b. No.

c.  See b. above.

Question 66: What are the Air Force’s current repaving requirements for work conducted in streets/runways?

Answer:  Replace pavement to match existing.

Question 67: Are there known areas on Hickam and Bellows that have fire flow pressure problems?

Answer:  No.

Question 68: Is it possible to get a copy of the C-17 and HIARNG Master Plans?

Answer:  No.

Question 69: What are the Air Force’s material requirements and testing standards for water system pipe (PVC, etc) and appurtenances?

Answer:  AWWA standards.

Question 70: What are the Air Force’s requirements for providing cathodic protection?

Answer:  Minimum requirement is bonded coating of metallic structures, 6 inches or larger.  Cathodic protection is required in tidal/water tables zones.

Question 71: Will any soils data or reports for Hickam and Bellows be provided?

Answer:  No.

Question 72: Is the 6-inch connection to Bellows from BWS (Aloi Loi Street) still active?

Answer:  The 6 inch connection valve is closed presently but is available in the event of an emergency.

Question 73: Will any main break records for Hickam and Bellows be provided?

Answer:  What was available was provided earlier.

Question 74: Will disinfection of water mains be required after fixing a break?

Answer:  Yes.

Question 75: Will traffic control be provided by the Air Force during an emergency response or will that be the responsibility of the contractor?

Answer:  It is the responsibility of the contractor.

Question 76:  Please provide a listing of completed projects related to the water system at Hickam and Bellows.

Answer:  Data being collected.

Question 77:  When does the water supply agreement between Hickam and the Navy expire?

Answer:  It’s indefinite.

Question 78:  Since it has been determined the Air Force will not conduct an Environmental Baseline Survey, please provide a listing of the Environmental Studies and investigations conducted over the last five years.  Will these documents be available to the offerors?

Answer:  See question 57.

Question 79:  Per Section C.5.1.4 in the RFP – what does CAD-CAM disks stand for?

Answer:  CAD-CAM stands for “Computer Aided Design-Computer Aided Machining.”

Question 80:  What CAD software is the Air Force using?

Answer:  Hickam is using Micro-Station and Auto CADD.

Question 81:  Per Section C.5.1.4 in the RFP – does this mean the selected contractor will not be maintaining the GIS but just be providing data for updates?

Answer:  Yes.  As the RFP reads, the selected contractor will not be maintaining the GIS, but just providing for updates for the installation’s GIS. 

Question 82:  What are the requirements of a Computerized Maintenance Management System?

Answer:   This question is currently under review.

Question 83:  In Attachment J40, the Example Completion Schedule of B-2, the amortization payments for Sub-CLIN AB are calculated for the Renewals and Replacements by starting with constant 2003 dollars in the future, and deflating them further by present valuing to 2002.  For example, an R&R in 2043 ($10,000 in Table J40-3), already expressed in 2003 dollars, is present valued 41 years back to 2002 dollars at 6.0% ($917.19).  Thereafter, the PV is used to calculate the amortization payments for Sub-CLIN AB.  This appears to undervalue the amortization payments.  Why is the calculation done this way?

 Answer:  The Table J40-3 example shown in Attachment J40 is for illustrative purposes only - it was designed to provide a general sense of items to consider in generating the R&R cash flow. In order to simplify the presentation of data, the table did not include a current dollar column – leaving the calculation of the present value of current dollars implicit in the PV calculation.  

Additionally, you may have a methodology for collapsing the projected R&R cash flow into a base year fixed monthly charge component that aligns better with your objectives. Please feel free to incorporate your own methodology per L.9.6.2 of the RFP. The critical consideration is that you feel comfortable with the baseline R&R component of the fixed monthly charge in that it covers the full stream of projected R&R cash flows. You are right in that once dollars are in the base year, they do not need to be discounted further.

Question 84:  When renewals and replacements are expressed in constant dollars in Schedules B-2, L-1, and L-2, does price redetermination allow for inflation on baseline costs in the future?  What inflation rate will be used?

Answer:  Inflation will not be automatically applied as a result of the price redeterminations. However; the price redetermination is governed by FAR 52.216.5 and allows for billing price adjustments. It is within these adjustments that inflation will be implicitly captured. 

Of note is that the fixed monthly charge is “locked-in” for the first two years of the contract so you may wish to include inflationary considerations for the first two years. Section L.9.6.1 (Sub-CLIN AB) and Section L.9.6.2 of the RFP should clarify. You should not include inflation in your fixed monthly charge beyond the second year. 

Question 85:  Section I.7.1 FAR 52.216-5:  Price Redetermination mentions that “in no event shall the total amount paid under this contract exceed any ceiling price included in the contract.”  How is the ceiling price calculated?  Does it consider inflation to baseline costs expressed in constant dollars as well as the potential for future changes to baseline costs based on changes in project needs?

Answer:  There is no ceiling price associated with this contract. 

Question 86:  For the winning proposer, if documented requests for changes to renewals and replacements are made in the future and are not accepted by the Air Force under price redetermination, who accepts the liability of unexpected, extraordinary emergency repairs?

Answer:  From an engineering perspective, my input would be:  The contractor’s renewals and replacements plan is originally compiled based on the government inventory provided, as well as any other associated technical documentation.  Once the contract is awarded, any future adjustments to the renewals and replacements plan should be based upon documented increases/decreases to the system inventory (due to mission changes at the installations), changes in codes or industry standards, or the “discovery” of any previously undocumented system inventories that would not be reasonably expected by the contractor to exist beforehand.  If the contractor can reasonably document that an unexpected, extraordinary emergency repair can be attributed to a specific Government non-acceptance of a change to the Contractor’s renewals and replacements plan (for the applicable situations stated above), the Government will accept the liability of the associated repairs.  If the Contractor cannot reasonably argue and document that the emergency repair is attributable to the Government’s non-acceptance of a Contractor’s change in its renewals and replacements plan, the Government will not be liable for the costs associated with the repair. 

Question 87:  The written proposal mentions that the 30-year Treasury bond issue published in Federal Register should be used in the B-2 pricing schedule.  There is no longer a 30-year Treasury rate in Schedule H.15 of the Federal Register.  Should we add the extrapolation factor to the Treasury long-term average rate (25 years and above) to simulate the 30-year Treasury rate?

Answer:  Since the benchmark is changing, your suggestion should be fine using the long-term avg rate (25 yrs and above from): http://www.federalreserve.gov/releases/H15/update/
Question 88:  Is the 12” AC water line that crosses Runway 8L on the State property part of this Proposal?

Answer:  Yes.

Question 89:  What are the requirements for rehabilitating and/or the maintenance AC pipe?  Is abandoning in place an alternative?

Answer:  There are no specific requirement.  Yes.

Question 90:  Are pressure tests, water quality tests, and a specific shut-off time be required for a replacement water line?

Answer:  Yes, according to AWWA  standards and State of Hawaii Department of Health. 

Question 91:  Will ADA curb-ramp upgrades apply to intersection improvements?

Answer:  Yes.

Question 92:  Will design and construction be in metrics or English units?

Answer:  Either.

Question 93:  Are electronic base maps available for Bellows?

Answer:  No.

Question 94:   Section J2.3 states the contractor is responsible for remediation and disposal of hazardous waste/material, including costs.  The same applies to Bellows.  If this is the case, is using the installation hazardous waste/material disposal facilities an option?

Answer:  No.

Question 95:  Regarding the water supply agreement with the Navy, are there opportunities for rate increases?  Is so, when?

Answer:  Yes.  Depends on the Navy.  It normally is once a year in conjunction with the fiscal year.

Question 96:  At what minimum resolution should the pdf be created (i.e., screen, print, press; 72dpi, 144 dpi, 150 dpi, 300 dpi, 600 dpi)?

Answer: Use the default settings on Acrobat Distiller. 600 dpi is standard.

Question 97:  Besides the proposal Table of Contents (TOC), what needs to be bookmarked?

Answer:   Per section L.4.4, in the RFP, titled “Electronic Media,” the Offeror shall provide appropriate bookmarks and thumbnails. 

Question 98:  Should the file open be set by default to show or to hide bookmarks?

Answer:  Per section L.4.4, in the RFP, titled “Electronic Media,” the Offeror shall provide appropriate bookmarks and thumbnails. 

Question 99:  By default, what heading levels should be shown (expanded) in the bookmarks? 

Answer: Per section L.4.4, in the RFP, titled “Electronic Media,” the Offeror shall provide appropriate bookmarks and thumbnails. 

Question 100:  Do thumbnails need to show page content?

Answer: Per section L.4.4, in the RFP, titled “Electronic Media,” the Offeror shall provide appropriate bookmarks and thumbnails. 

Question 101:  To confirm the information presented in the preproposal conference, for a specific type of utility system with multiple installations should we submit just one price schedule?  The written proposal mentions that we should submit separate price schedules for like utility systems between Installations.

Answer:  Yes, an offeror submits just one price proposal per CLIN see amendment 0001 to refer to the changes of the CLINs.  However, please note that an offeror may submit bundled bids which include complete combinations of the CLINs listed in the RFP.  You may not submit bundled bids in any other type of configuration.

Question 102:  Is it acceptable to bundle two like utility systems between Installations into four separately bound volumes (Technical, Past Performance, Contract Documentation, and Price)?

 Answer:  Per Amendment 0001, two like utility systems (e.g., electric distribution at Hickam AFB and Bellows AFS) have been combined into one CLIN.  An offeror would include both installation’s electric system into one technical volume, one past performance volume, one contract documentation volume, and one price volume.

